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VISION

Creating Investment Solutions within
everyone’s reach




Mission

&
h*re Values

To create a conducive working enviroment, to attract
the Asset Management Sector. ABLAMC strives to
choice' for young and experienced talent.

|
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To set the highest industry standards in terms of p
innovations, in order to offer products for clients

To adhere to the highest industry standard for in
across all the spheres of the company.

To use technology and financial structuring to serve a
compared to the competition.

To enhance Stakeholders Value.
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The Board of Directors of ABL Asset Management Company Limited, the management company of
Income Fund (ABL-IF), is pleased to present the Audited Financial Statements of ABL Income Fund for
the year ended on June 30, 2019.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The outgoing year was an election year where a new political setup came into power. While the initiatives
of the new government seemed to serve a noble cause, the seemingly haphazard approach to policy
making created a tense environment for all stakeholders of the economy. On the external front, FY19
Current Account of Balance of Payment showed a marked improvement where the deficit stood at USD
13,587 million as compared to USD 19,897 million during the same period last year. Despite a 31.7%
PKR/USD devaluation over FY19 following 16% in FY18, exports remained stunted; declining by 1.8%
during FY19 while imports also dropped by 8.8%. Apart from the improvement in trade deficit, 9.7%
higher remittances from overseas Pakistanis (USD 21,842 million during FY19) added to the relief.
However, a continued plunge in the country’s foreign exchange reserves, where SBP import cover
dropped to around 1.6 months (from 4 months and 2.1 months for FY17 and FY18, respectively), took
them to USD 14.4 billion as compared to USD 16.4 billion last year. This includes foreign assistances
received from Saudi Arabia, China, and UAE during the latter half of FY19. Apart from arranging
alternate sources for funding the external account, an IMF package of USD 6.0 billion during the next 39
months, has now been negotiated, that would potentially unleash the potential of further assistance of
USD 38.0 billion from multilateral and bilateral sources over the course of the IMF program.
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Pakistan’s GDP growth slowed down to 3.2% in FY19 from 5.2% in FY18. This was majorly led by 0.3%
contraction in the Manufacturing sector, which itself was a result of sharp monetary and fiscal tightening
measures undertaken by the PTI government. Major slowdown was seen in Construction & Allied and

Consumer related sectors. Poor cotton crop also dragged the Agriculture segment growth to only 0.9%
YoY compared to 3.8% YoY in FY18.

Inflation averaged 7.3% during FY 19 compared to 3.9% in FY18 (3.6% average for prior 3 years), where
it averaged 8.6% in 2HFY19. Major reasons for the uptick in CPI readings were (i) PKR/USD
depreciation of 31.7%, (ii) sharp increases in power and gas tariffs, and (iii) stronger Food inflation at the
end of the year. Core inflation, however, was less volatile and averaged 7.9% YoY during the year. In
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response to (i) strong uptick in inflation, (ii) still-high current account deficit, and (iii) pre-program
conditions of IMF, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) increased the policy rate by 575bps during the year.
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Fiscal deficit remained high at 7.3% of GDP during FY 19 because of limited growth in tax revenue while
most of the savings were eroded by higher debt servicing. Tax collection in FY19 remained at PKR 3,762
billion against PKR 3,842 billion collected last year, reflecting a decrease of 2.1% YoY. Despite the

announcement of amnesty scheme, FBR seems lagged behind its revised tax collection target of PKR
4,150 billion, reflecting a shortfall of PKR 388 billion. The fis cal deficit matter is also being addressed in
the recently announced FY20 budget with focus placed on enhancing revenues to PKR 5,500 billion by
broadening the tax base.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

Total Assets under Management (AUMs) of Pakistan’s open-end mutual fund industry continued the
declining trend as they posted a decrease of 14%YoY in FY19 from PKR 668 billion to PKR 571 billion,
followed by 1.7%YoY decline in FY18. This reduction was predominantly led by the Islamic and
conventional Equity categories which slide by 26% and 40%, respectively. Sluggish equity market
performance and higher interest rates environment shifted the investor interest in the money market funds,
as AUMSs under the Islamic money market funds increased by 76% in FY19.

On a cumulative basis, the fixed income category (comprising of income, aggressive income and money
market funds) registered a marginal increase of 0.22%YoY to close at PKR 191 billion in FY 19 compared
to PKR 190.8 billion in FY'18. Rising interest rates tend the investors to focus on shorter duration money
market funds which witnessed an increase of 9%YoY to PKR 135 billion in FY19 compared to PKR 123
billion in FY'18. On the other hand, Islamic income funds AUMs (comprising of Islamic income, Islamic
money market and Islamic aggressive income) increased by 38%YoY to PKR 91 billion in FY19
compared to PKR 66 billion in FY 18, largely due to increasing investor interest in Islamic investments.

OBJECTIVE

The objective of ABL Income Fund is to earn superior risk adjusted rate of return by investing in a blend
of short, medium and long term debt instruments, both within and outside Pakistan.

FIXED INCOME MARKET REVIEW

During the period under review, the money market maintained an upward trajectory amid frequent hikes
in key interest rates. As a result, the market maintained a shorter duration and avoided heavy participation
in longer duration instruments. Upward revision in utility prices and reduction/withdrawal of government
subsidies along with considerable devaluation of PKR against USD added to inflation. As a result, SBP
raised the policy rate by 575bps with six intervals in contrast to the 75bps in the SPLY. The p olicy rate
increased from 6.5% to 12.25% in May 2019 where 150bps increase was witnessed in 4QFY 19 alone.
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Inflation clocked in at ~7.32%YoY for FY19 as compared to ~3.9%YoY in FY18. The higher inflation
was the result of higher transport, housing, electricity, gas and food prices. While the headline inflation
remained in check during the year, pressure on the external side continued to disrupt the position of Pak
Rupee in the international market raising concerns regarding spike in inflation.

Pakistan investment bonds (PIBs) trading yields went up ranging from 469bps to 719bps, with a
significant tilt towards shorter tenor instruments. During the year, money market witnessed a seasonal
lack of liquidity as SBP continued with frequent open market operations (OMOs). At the end of the year,
the SBP remained a net lender of worth PKR 702 billion under single reverse repo arrangement at a cut-
off rate 12.38%.

On the T-bills side, the 3-Month cut off yields increased from 6.26% to 12.75%. During the year,
participation in 6 & 12 Month T-bills remained subdued due to the continuous rise in interest rates. The
cut off rates for 6 Months however increased from 6.85% to 12.80% whereas the bond cut off yields for 3,
5 & 10 years closed at 13.70%, 13.80% & 13.60% respectively.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the year FY’19, ABL Income Fund witnessed a decline in Fund Size as the Fund’s Net Assets at
the end of Jun’19 declined to PKR 1.692 billion as compared to PKR 2.810 billion as on June 30, 2018.
The AUMs for Income Fund were reduced due to market trend of investors shifting from longer duration
funds to shorter duration funds. The portfolio’s allocation however remained heavy in high quality
floating rate instruments, such as TFCs and Sukuks in order to keep the portfolio duration low.

During the period, ABL IF posted an annualized return of 7.12% against its benchmark return of 10.30%
therefore the fund underperformed the benchmark by a significant margin. The underperformance can be
attributed towards a high total expense ratio (TER) of the fund and adverse movement in market prices of
debt instruments. The return however was supported by investment in TDRs and DPAs at exceptional
profit rates along with timely exposure in Spread Transactions. We, in general, maintained a moderate to
low portfolio duration with floating rate notes repricing quarterly and semi-annually. As a result,
investment in cash deposits stood at 36.08% whereas exposure in TFCs stood at 33.81% of the fund. At
year end, WAM of the portfolio was closed to 813 days.

ADDITIONAL MATTERS
1. The detail of Directors of the Management Company is disclosed in this Annual Report.

2. Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and the
changes in unit holder’s fund;

3. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

4. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments;

5. Relevant International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 & Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, requirements of the Trust Deed and directives
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, have been followed in the
preparation of the financial statements;
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6. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

7. There have been no significant doubts upon the Funds’ ability to continue as going concern;
8. Performance table of the Fund is given on page # 12  of the Annual Report;

9. There is no statutory payment on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges outstanding other than
already disclosed in the financial statements;

10. The statement as to the value of investments of Provident Fund is not applicable in the case of the
Fund as employees retirement benefits expenses are borne by the Management Company;

11. The pattern of unit holding as at June 30, 2019 is given in note No. 24  of the Financial
Statements.

AUDITORS

M/s. A F. Fergusons & Co. (Chartered Accountants), have been re-appointed as auditors for the year
ending June 30, 2019 for ABL Income Fund (ABL-IF).

FUND STABILITY RATING

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Ltd. (JCR-VIS) on January 16, 2019, reaffirmed the Fund Stability
Rating of ABL Income Fund at ‘A(f)’ (Single A(f)).

MANAGEMENT QUALITY RATING

On December 31, 2018, JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has reaffirmed the
Management Quality Rating of ABL Asset Management Company Limited (ABL AMC) to ‘AM2++’
(AM-Two-Double Plus) from ‘AM2+’ (AM Two Plus). Outlook on the assigned rating is ‘Stable’.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

We expect the monetary tightening cycle to have achieved its peak after an increase of 750 bps in policy
rate as the inflationary pressures are expected to soften towards end of FY20 along with improvements on
Balance of Payments front. The improvements in CAD can already be witnessed. While most of the
economic indicators are moving in the right direction, unfavorable movements in international oil prices
continue to pose a threat.

Going forward, the fund shall review its policy of shorter tenor duration while initiating and maintaining
exposure in long term instruments such as 3 & 5 years PIBs.

ABL Income Fund Performance FY-2019
Yield 7.12%
Benchmark 6 Months KIBOR Average 10.31%
Weighted Average Time to Maturity of Net Assets (days) 813
Asset under management as at June 30,2016 (PKR mn) 1692.9
Closing NAV per unit as on June 30,2017 (PKR) (Ex -Dividend) 10.0718
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Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets)

6.13%
3.83%

36.08%
20.16%

33.81%
M Cash HTFCs

" PIBs M Others including receivables

= Commercial Paper

Credit Quality (% of Totil1 Assets)

20.15% ’-90%
1.07% 11.21%
5.40% k ‘
W 3%

43.42%
H AA+ A+
M Others / Unrated H AA-
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M Govt. Securities
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OBJECTIVE
The objective of ABL Income Fund is to earn superior risk adjusted rate of return by investing in a blend
of short, medium and long term debt instruments, both within and outside Pakistan.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The outgoing year was an election year where a new political setup came into power. While the initiatives
of the new government seemed to serve a noble cause, the seemingly haphazard approach to policy
making created a tense environment for all stakeholders of the economy. On the external front, FY19
Current Account of Balance of Payment showed a marked improvement where the deficit stood at USD
13,587 million as compared to USD 19,897 million during the same period last year. Despite a 31.7%
PKR/USD devaluation over FY19 following 16% in FY18, exports remained stunted; declining by 1.8%
during FY19 while imports also dropped by 8.8%. Apart from the improvement in trade deficit, 9.7%
higher remittances from overseas Pakistanis (USD 21,842 million during FY19) added to the relief.
However, a continued plunge in the country’s foreign exchange reserves, where SBP import cover
dropped to around 1.6 months (from 4 months and 2.1 months for FY17 and FY18, respectively), took
them to USD 14.4 billion as compared to USD 16.4 billion last year. This includes foreign assistances
received from Saudi Arabia, China, and UAE during the latter half of FY19. Apart from arranging
alternate sources for funding the external account, an IMF package of USD 6.0 billion during the next 39
months, has now been negotiated, that would potentially unleash the potential of further assistance of
USD 38.0 billion from multilateral and bilateral sources over the course of the IMF program.

Pakistan’s GDP growth slowed down to 3.2% in FY19 from 5.2% in FY18. This was majorly led by 0.3%
contraction in the Manufacturing sector, which itself was a result of sharp monetary and fiscal tightening
measures undertaken by the PTI government. Major slowdown was seen in Construction & Allied and
Consumer related sectors. Poor cotton crop also dragged the Agriculture segment growth to only 0.9%
YoY compared to 3.8% YoY in FY18.

Inflation averaged 7.3% during FY19 compared to 3.9% in FY 18 (3.6% average for prior 3 years), where
it averaged 8.6% in 2HFY19. Major reasons for the uptick in CPI readings were (i) PKR/USD
depreciation of 31.7%, (ii) sharp increases in power and gas tariffs, and (iii) stronger Food inflation at the
end of the year. Core inflation, however, was less volatile and averaged 7.9% YoY duri ng the year. In
response to (i) strong uptick in inflation, (ii) still-high current account deficit, and (iii) pre-program
conditions of IMF, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) increased the policy rate by 575bps during the year.
Fiscal deficit remained high at 7.3% of GDP during FY'19 because of limited growth in tax revenue while
most of the savings were eroded by higher debt servicing. Tax collection in FY19 remained at PKR 3,762
billion against PKR 3,842 billion collected last year, reflecting a decrease of 2.1% YoY. Despite the
announcement of amnesty scheme, FBR seems lagged behind its revised tax collection target of PKR
4,150 billion, reflecting a shortfall of PKR 388 billion. The fiscal deficit matter is also being addressed in
the recently announced FY20 budget with focus placed on enhancing revenues to PKR 5,500 billion by
broadening the tax base.

MONEY MARKET REVIEW

During the period under review, the money market maintained an upward trajectory amid frequent hikes
in key interest rates. As a result, the market maintained a shorter duration and avoided heavy participation
in longer duration instruments. Upward revision in utility prices and reduction/withdrawal of government
subsidies along with considerable devaluation of PKR against USD added to inflation. As a result, SBP
raised the policy rate by 575bps with six intervals in contrast to the 75bps in the SPLY. The policy rate
increased from 6.5% to 12.25% in May 2019 where 150bps increase was witnessed in 4QFY 19 alone.
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Inflation clocked in at ~7.32%Yo0Y for FY19 as compared to ~3.9%YoY in FY18. The higher inflation
was the result of higher transport, housing, electricity, gas and food prices. While the headline inflation
remained in check during the year, pressure on the external side continued to disrupt the position of Pak
Rupee in the international market raising concerns regarding spike in inflation.

Pakistan investment bonds (PIBs) trading yields went up ranging from 469bps to 719bps, with a
significant tilt towards shorter tenor instruments. During the year, money market witnessed a seasonal
lack of liquidity as SBP continued with frequent open market operations (OMOs). At the end of the year,
the SBP remained a net lender of worth PKR 702 billion under single reverse repo arrangement at a cut-
off rate 12.38%.

On the T-bills side, the 3-Month cut off yields increased from 6.26% to 12.75%. During the year,
participation in 6 & 12 Month T-bills remained subdued due to the continuous rise in interest rates. The
cut off rates for 6 Months however increased from 6.85% to 12.80% whereas the bond cut off yields for 3,
5 & 10 years closed at 13.70%, 13.80% & 13.60% respectively.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the year FY’19, ABL Income Fund witnessed a decline in Fund Size as the Fund’s Net Assets at
the end of Jun’19 declined to PKR 1.692 billion as compared to PKR 2.810 billion as on June 30, 2018.
The AUMs for Income Fund were reduced due to market trend of investors shifting from longer duration
funds to shorter duration funds. The portfolio’s allocation however remained heavy in high quality
floating rate instruments, such as TFCs and Sukuks in order to keep the portfolio duration low.

During the period, ABL IF posted an annualized return of 7.12% against its benchmark return of 10.31%
therefore the fund underperformed the benchmark by a significant margin. The underperformance can be
attributed towards a high total expense ratio (TER) of the fund and adverse movement in market prices of
debt instruments. The return however was supported by investment in TDRs and DPAs at exceptional
profit rates along with timely exposure in Spread Transactions. We, in general, maintained a moderate to
low portfolio duration with floating rate notes repricing quarterly and semi-annually. As a result,
investment in cash deposits stood at 36.08% whereas exposure in TFCs stood at 33.81% of the fund. At
year end, WAM of the portfolio was closed to 813 days.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY
We expect the monetary tightening cycle to have achieved its peak after an increase of 750 bps in policy

rate as the inflationary pressures are expected to soften towards end of FY20 along with improvements on
Balance of Payments front. The improvements in CAD can already be witnessed. While most of the
economic indicators are moving in the right direction, unfavorable movements in international oil prices
continue to pose a threat.

Going forward, the fund shall review its policy of shorter tenor duration while initiating and maintaining
exposure in long term instruments such as 3 & 5 years PIBs.

ABL Income Fund Performance FY-2019
Yield 7.12%
Benchmark 6 Months KIBOR Average 10.31%
Weighted Average Time to Maturity of Net Assets (days) 813
Asset under management as at June 30,2019 (PKR mn) 1692.9

| Closing NAV per unit as on June 30,2019 (PKR) (Ex-Dividend) 10.0717 |
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Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets)

6.13%
3.83%

20.16% \

36.08%

@

33.81%
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Credit Quality (% of Total Assets)

14.90%

20.15%

1.07% 11.21%
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June 2019

Net Assets
Net Income

1,692,901
132,149

Net Assets value 10.0717

June 2018

2,810,027
167,989

10.5036

June 2017

3,875,373
83,802

10.0354

June 2016 June 2015 June 2014

June 2013 June 2012 June 2011 June 2010

(Rupees in '000)
1,953,428 1,682,107
123,585 126,901
e --(Rupees per unit)
10.0292 10.0259 10.0409

3,734,490
123,060

2,476,973 3,784,263

623,793

4,878,536
639,266

8,360,054
933,649

10.0098 10.0289 10.0195 10.0164

June 2009

6,872,176
398,369

10.0166

Interim distribution * 0.4438

0.7171 - 0.7168

0.7559 0.8777 0.8296 0.8123

0.7627

Final distribution 0.7034

0.5631

- 1.4370 0.0463

0.2175 0.2361 0.2848 0.2421

0.2971

Distribution date final June 26,2019

June 20,2017

- June 11,2015 June 23,2014

June 28,2013

June 25,2012 June 29,2011

June 28,2010

June 29,2009

Closing offer price 10.2228

10.6611

10.1859

10.1796 10.1763 10.1915

10.0098 10.0289 10.0195 10.0164

10.0166

Closing repurchase price 10.0717

10.5036

10.0354

10.0292 10.0259 10.0409

10.0098 10.0289 10.0195 10.0164

10.0166

Highest offer price 10.9246

10.6551

10.7215

10.8645 11.643 10.4074

10.3479 10.3158 10.2906 10.2731

10.4165

Lowest offer price 10.2259

10.1896

10.1454

10.1578 10.1538 10.1424

10.0022 10.0006 10.0032 10.0032

10.0000

Highest repurchase price per unit 10.7632

10.4976

10.5631

10.7039 11.4709 10.2536

10.3479 10.3158 10.2906 10.2731

10.4165

Lowest repurchase price per unit 10.0748

10.039

9.9955

10.0077 10.0037 9.9925

10.0022 10.0006 10.0032 10.0032

10.0000

Total return of the fund

- capital growth -4.35%

4.67%

0.23%

Per

0.02% -0.17% 0.54%

0.51% 0.54% 0.51% 0.43%

3.96%

- income distribution 11.47%

0.00%

5.63%

7.17% 14.37% 11.14%

11.14% 11.14% 11.14% 10.54%

10.60%

Average Annual return of the fund

One Year 7.12%

4.67%

5.86%

7.19% 14.20% 8.19%

Two Year 6.06%

5.40%

6.74%

9.87% 11.68% 11.65% 10.97%

11.20% 11.78% 9.44%

11.36% 12.35% 11.95%

Three Year 6.23%

6.26%

9.86%

10.81% 11.92% 10.92%

12.34%

Four Year 6.81%

8.91%

10.05%

11.38% 12.91% 12.06%

12.79%
13.01% -

Five Year 9.06%

9.35%

10.81%

12.50% 13.85% 12.03%

Six Year 9.53%

10.20%

12.01%

13.52% 14.64%

Seven Year 10.39%

11.44%

13.09%

14.48% -

Eight Year 11.61%

12.63%

Nine Year 12.74%

13.68%

14.15%

Ten Year 13.90%

Since Inception 15.35%

15.14%

15.60%

15.16% 15.24%

13.58% 12.53%

14.56%

‘Weighted average Portfolio

duration in days 813

592

630

803 352

201 92

82

* Interim Distribution date
Distribution History
2019

Date Rate

July 3,2018 Re 0.3588 Per Unit

Date

June 20, 2017

Rate

Re 0.5631 Per Unit

Date Rate

June 20, 2016 Re 0.1195 Per Unit

Date Rate Date

June 11, 2015 Re 1.4370 Per Unit Sept 27, 2013

Rate

Re 0.1211 Per Unit

Re 0.0850 Per Unit
Re 0.7034 Per Unit

August 1, 2018
June 26, 2019

Date Rate

Sept 24, 2012 Re 0.3479 Per Unit

Date

Sept 27, 2011

Rate

Re 0.3158 Per Unit

June 24, 2016 Re 0.5976 Per Unit

Date Rate

Sept 29, 2010 Re 0.2701 Per Unit

Sept 29, 2009

Dec 30, 2013

Re 0.1906 Per Unit

March 27, 2014

Re 0.2397 Per Unit

May 30, 2014

Re 0.1654 Per Unit

2009

Date Rate Date

Re 0.2731 Per Unit Dec 31,2008

Rate

0.4165 Per unit

Dec 27,2012 Re 0.2531 Per Unit

Dec 26, 2011

Re 0.3089 Per Unit

Dec 30, 2010 Re 0.2689 Per Unit

Dec 30, 2009 Re 0.2783 Per Unit March 31,2009

Re 0.3462 Per Unit

March 22, 2013 Re 0.1549 Per Unit

March 26,2012

Re 0.2530 Per Unit

March 30,2011 Re 0.2906 Per Unit

March 30,2010

Re 0.2609 Per Unit

Disclaimer

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.

Y
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Tol @2-21]1 11111 1508

Fatne 452-21) 34T RO - 23
LRL wianh colopakistan. om
Ermil: mfo@cdopak ¢aom
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
ABL INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h} and clawse 9 of Schedule ¥ of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistun Limited, being the Trustes of ABL
Income Fund (the Fumd) are of the opmion that ABL Asset Management Company
Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects
maneped the Fund durmg the year ended June 30, 2019 in eccordance with the
provisions of the following

(&) Limututions. imposed on the investment powers of the Management Campany
under the constitutive documents of the Fund;

[ The pricing, 1ssuance and redempizon of unns-are camed oul in sccordance
with the requirements of the constitutive docoments of the Fund; and

{ii}  The Non-Banking Finance Companies { Establishment and Regulations) Fules,
2003, the Non-Bankmp Finance Companees and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the copstiutive docoments of the Fund

t

A/
Badindlfin Akber

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karschi: September 19, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Unit holders of ABL Ineome Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We huve audited the financial statements of ABL Incotne Fund (the Fune), which consprise the statement
af nssets and Hubilities as st June 30, 2015, and the income statement, stetement of comprehensive Incatme,
staterent of mavement in wnit holders’ fund ond eash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes
1o the financial statements, including o summary of sigrificant accounting policies.

In aur opénson, the aceompanying Ananeal statements give o troe and fair view of the financial position of
the Furd &5 ot June 90, 2000, and of s lnaneial porformance, its eash flows and transactions for the year
then ended in sceordance with the aceounting and reporting standards s applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our asdit in accardance with International Standards on Auditing {[5As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
e the Awidit of the Finonein! Statements seetion of aur report. We are independent of the Fumd in
accordance with the Iternational Ethies Standards Baard far Acenartants’ Code af Ethies for aional
Avconntants as sdopted by the Institute of Chorered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceordanee with the Cade. We belbeve that the audit evidence
we have obtakmed b= sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Ky adit matters are those matiers that, in aur professional judgment, were of mest significance i oor
sudit of the financial statements of the current period, Thess matters were sddressed In the context of s
adit of the financial statements as a whabe, and in forming eor opinicn therean, and we do pot provide a
separate opinion an these matlers

Following ia the key awdit matter;

No. ey Aot i | e theter i mddressed i oue e

1 Nt Asset Valoe (RAY)
{ Rusfier nobes 4 And 5 1o the Snancia! saiements

Thas hank helunces and investments coeptitute th COur awdit procedures mchuded the followeg:

\mosk sgnificanl cempenent of the KAV, The hank 5

hiarsees o e Pund ax st Jane 5o, toig amounted o - Losed tradesign and opernting effectivenzas of the
| Ba Bj 260y million and lrestments aggregated to B key condrols for vatusticon of investments,

| nrriortd million, » phtained independest confirmations Tor vu'ifgnnE

. f Lhe existence of the investment portfolio amd ban
o s o e e balancesus ut June 30, 2010 and cozonciled it with

of NAY of the Feod a5 1 June 35, smg wes L books and meords of the Fund. Whind such

A. F, FERGUSON & 0., Chartered Accovmbaniz, o resther firin of the Pud nefsork
State Life Building No, 0-C, LI Chimdrigar Road, PO, Box g7, Karecki-raooo, Pakidan
Tl +92 (20] QrgnOSE-0,F2it 715, FOx: +02 (21) F20007 1242 RaE SRy m0; <umais plec oo/ pks

sRARACH! « LAMORE « ISLAMABAD

\\ 4
AABL Asset Management AB L-' F (
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il i Koy Audit Matter Fow the matter wns addressed in our auslit
nsidered ' high rsk ama and therefore e prmﬂ.rm;l.i:.m-h!-l-.:-r_.d.l. Hulk;'hl_!_:lmﬂ e auiil
comeidered this as a key sodit matter procvdures wene performed |
s re-periormed valyation to assess that meestments
arée carriss] 83 per the veluation metbadokogy
specified in the acsaunting policis; and
+ obigined hank recoociliation  sAstements and
lestiedl recoaeiling ivems on & sample bass,

irther Information

Management is reapansible for the ather inforimation, The uther information comprises the information
inchuded (n the Annual Beport, but doss not include the financial statements and our aoditor’s report
therean.

Otar aplnilon on the finaneia] siatemeiits does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclisbon thesear,

In epnnection with cur audit of the Ainancial statements, our respansibility is to read the other informition
amdl, in doing so, consider whether the other informatien is matecially inconsistent with the financial
statements of our knestedge obtained in the sudit or otherwise appears o e materially misstated, T,
s o the wark we have performed, we eonclade that there is a material misstatement af this ather
informatlon, we are nequired o repart that fact, We have nathing to repert in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Direetors of the Management Company for
the Financial Statements
M it 4 responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of the [oafcial statements in

pcenrdane with aceounting aod peporting standards as applieible in Pabistan, ond for such nfernal comtrol
s management determine is necessary 1o enable the preparutbon of Anancial siatements that aze friee from
material misstatement, whether due to froad o error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is resparsibe for aisessing the Fund's ability 1o
comtinue as a gaing concern, disclosing, s applienble, matters related va going concern and using the going
consern bagts of aceounting unless monagement either intends to liquidate the Fand or o cease operatione,
or has oo pealistic alternative hat 1 do sa,

Banrd af directors of the neanagement company is respomsible for averseeing the Fund's financlal reporting

prucess,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stalements

Cur oijectives are (e phtain reasonable assuranee about whether the financal statements as a whnde nre
free from material misstatement, whether due 1o frand o7 error, and to issse an auditor’s report that
ineludes aur opinion. Reasonable assirance is 8 bigh level of assurance, hat is oot a guarntes that an o
canducted in aceardonoe with 15A% 2= apphieabbe in Pokistan will always deteet 0 material misstatement
when it exisls Missialemsents can arse from fraud of error and are eomsidersd material if, individually o
Im the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit I eecordanes with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan, we sxercise professional judgment
anid maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: !

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financind statemsents, whether due to fravwd
i error, design and perform audit procediares responsive o those risks, and abtain audit evidence that
|5 sufficsent and appropriate by provide o basis for our opinion. The rlsk of nat detecting a matesial

A
ABL-IF r
ABLINCOME FUND A P 1BL Asset Management
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miseistement nesulting From fraud is higher than for one resulting fram emar, as fraud sy invobve
colhasion, forgery. intentional omisshons, misrepresentations, ar the averride of internal contral.

+  Obtgin an understonding of internal mntrol relevant to the ausdit n order to design audi procedurs
that are appropriate in the circumstances, bt nat for the purpeas of expressing an opinkon on the
eRectiveness of the Fund's internal contrel,

+  Evilunte the appropristeness of accounting pobicies wied and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates nnd related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude an the appropristeness of management’s use of the going, concern basis of aceounting and.
hased an the mudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that moy cast signifizant doubt on the Fund's ability te continue a5 going coneern. If we
craiclude that n material uncertzinty exists, we are nequired ta draw attention in our mxditar’s repart to
the related disclostres in the financinl statements oz, if such disclosures are imadecquate, to madify aur
aplnian, Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidence chtained up to the date of par suditor's
report. However, Future events or conditlons may cause the Fundl 1o eease ta continue as o golng
CORDErT.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stasements, (nelading the
disclosares, ond whether the finoncinl statements pepresent the underlying transactions and events in
& naner that schieves fair presentation

We eomimiinleate with board of directors of the management company Teganding, Song ather matters,
the planned scope and timing of the medit aed skgnificant sudit findings. mcheding any significant
doficiencies in inteenal control that we (deatlfy during sur aadit.

We also provide board of directors of the managememt company with & stat & that s have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commaricate with them all
relationships and other matters thal may reasonabiy be thought to bear on var independence, and where
applicable, reloted safeguards.

Fram the matters communicated with board of directors of the manngemnent comparry, we determine those
matters that were of most significanse in the audit of the Anancial statemmnts of the current period ard are
therefors the key sucit matlers. We deseribe these matters in our anditor's report umless law or regiilathan
prechudes public discame about the matter or when, in extresnely mre dreumstances, we determine that
2 matter should not be commuricated in our repert because the sdverse consequences aof daing so would
reasannbly b experted 1o sutweigh the pablic interest benefits of such comaminkation,

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements

Hased on our audit, we further report that In our opinien the financls] stabements have been prepared in
all mmaterlal respeets in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Hanking Finance Caompanies
and Notified Entitivs Fegulstions, 2008,

The engagement partner on the aodit resulting in this independent  auditor’ i
Noman Abbas Sheikh. = P

Chartered Accountanis
Farachl
[rate: September 37, 2010

N (
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ABL INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
2019 2018
Note  -—--------—- Rupees in '000-------------

Assets
Bank balances 4 642,683 1,924,427
Investments 5 1,071,265 856,771
Receivable against sale of investments - 9,655
Interest / profit accrued 6 34,520 18,297
Deposits and other receivable 7 34,092 36,778
Total assets 1,782,560 2,845,928
Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited

- Management Company 8 28,765 27,190
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 9 245 328
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10 1,534 2,743
Payable against redemption of units 1,675 811
Payable against purchase of investments 46,338 -
Dividend payable 1 -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 11,101 4,829
Total liabilities 89,659 35,901
NET ASSETS 1,692,901 2,810,027
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 1,692,901 2,810,027
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12

---------------- Number of units-------------—-----
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 168,084,730 267,531,015
R up
NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 10.0717 10.5036
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
Saqib Mateen Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

ABL-IF A #5L Asset Management
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ABL INCOME FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
Note ---------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------
Income
Interest / profit earned 13 202,234 244241
Other income 370 1,010
Loss on sale of investments - net (5,533) (1,059)
Net unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 5.7 (12,956) 1,752
(18,489) 693
Total income 184,115 245,944
Expenses
Remuneration of ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management
Company 8.1 30,675 54,867
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 8.2 4,908 8,888
Accounting and operational charges 8.4 2,044 3,657
Selling and marketing expenses 8.5 8,177 780
Remuneration of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 9.1 2,588 3,959
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 9.2 336 515
Annual fees to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10.1 1,534 2,743
Securities transaction cost 600 1,064
Auditors' remuneration 14 399 571
Annual rating fee 300 302
Annual listing fee 27 28
Printing charges 26 273
Legal and professional charges 244 175
Bank charges 108 133
Total operating expenses 51,966 77,955
Net income for the year before taxation 132,149 167,989
Taxation 16 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 132,149 167,989
Earnings per unit 17 - -
Allocation of net income for the year
Net income for the year after taxation 132,149 167,989
Income already paid on units redeemed (50,670) (66,430)
81,479 101,559
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - 693
- Excluding capital gains 81,479 100,866
81,479 101,559
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
Saqib Mateen Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

AABL Asset Management IA\B L_I F (
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ABL INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
---------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------

Net income for the year after taxation 132,149 167,989

Other comprehensive income for the year -

Total comprehensive income for the year 132,149 167,989

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited

(Management Company)
Saqib Mateen Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
ABL-IF r A
ABL-INCOME FUND M. ABL Asset) Mi?f g? :]:?;tu
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ABL INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
. Un- . Un-
Capital distributed Total Capital distributed Total
value . value .
income income
(Rupees in '000)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 2,693,534 116,493 2,810,027 3,860,439 14,934 3,875,373
Issue of 152,554,508 (2018: 314,280,963) units
Capital value (at net asset value per
unit at ex - net asset value) 1,535,356 - 1,535,356 3,153,930 - 3,153,930
Element of income 47,666 - 47,666 48,574 - 48,574
Total proceeds on issuance of units 1,583,022 - 1,583,022 3,202,504 - 3,202,504
Redemption of 252,000,793 (2018: 432,920,867) units
Capital value (at net asset value per
unit at ex - net asset value) 2,536,890 - 2,536,890 4,344,527 4,344,527
Element of loss 15,028 50,670 65,698 24,882 66,430 91,312
Total payments on redemption of units 2,551,918 50,670 2,602,588 4,369,409 66,430 4,435,839
Total comprehensive income for the year - 132,149 132,149 - 167,989 167,989
Distribution for the year ended June 30,2018
@ Re 0.3588 per unit on July 3,2018 (18,171) (77,820) (95,991) - - -
Distribution for the year ended June 30,2018
@ Re 0.0850 per unit on August 1, 2018 (4,009) (18,170) (22,179) - - -
Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2019
@ Re 0.7034 per unit on June 26, 2019 (32,123) (79,416)]  (111,539) - - -
Total distributions during the year (54,303) (175,406)  (229,709) - - -
Net assets at the end of the year 1,670,335 22,566 1,692,901 2,693,534 116,493 2,810,027
Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised 114,741 7,621
- Unrealised 1,752 7,313
116,493 14,934
Accounting income available for distribution
-Relating to capital gains - 693
-Excluding capital gains 81,479 100,866
81,479 101,559
Distribution during the year (175,406) -
Undistributed income carried forward 22,566 116,493
Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised 35,522 114,741
- Unrealised (loss) / income (12,956) 1,752
22,566 116,493
Rupees
Rupees
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 10.5036
B 10.0354
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 10.0717 -

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

Saqib Mateen Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

AABL Asset Management IA\B L_’ F (
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ABL INCOME FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest / profit earned

Net unrealised diminution / (appreciation) on re-measurement of investments
classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'

Reversal of SWWF

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Deposits and other receivable

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Interest / profit received
Net amount (paid) / received on purchase and sale of investments

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issuance of units - net of refund of element
Net payments against redemption of units

Cash pay-out against distribution

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited

5.7

2019

2018

Rupees in '000 ----------—-m-

132,149 167,989
(202,234) (244.241)
12,956 (1,752)
- (572)
(189,278) (246,565)
2,686 (5,664)
1,575 (1,442)
(83) (16)
(1,209) (70)
1 1)
6,272 (17,124)
6,556 (18,653)
(47,887) (102,893)
186,011 254,229
(62,201) 313,414
75,923 464,750
1,528,719 3,202,504
(2,601,724) (4,480,482)
(175,406) -
(1,248,411) (1,277,978)
(1,172,488) (813,228)
1,924,427 2,737,655
751,939 1,924,427

(Management Company)
Saqib Mateen Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
ABL-IF r A
ABL-INCONE FUND ABL Asset Management
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ABL INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

ABL Income Fund (the Fund) is an open ended mutual fund constituted under a Trust Deed entered into on June 16, 2008 between
ABL Asset Management Company as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the
Trustee. The Trust Deed has been revised through the Deed of Change of Trustee and the First and Second Supplemental Trust
Deeds dated September 30, 2010 and July 29, 2011 respectively with the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP). Furthermore, the Offering Document of the Fund has been revised through the First, Second, Third and Fourth
Supplements dated November 1, 2010, September 20, 2011, December 20, 2011, and July 30, 2013 respectively with the approval
of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
authorised constitution of the Trust Deed vide letter no. NBFC - 1I/VS/ ABL/ 447/ 2008 dated June 06, 2008 in accordance with
the requirement of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the Non-Banking
Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) through a certificate of registration issued by
the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at Plot No. 14, Main Boulevard, DHA Phase 6, Lahore.
The Management Company is a member of the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

The Fund has been categorised as an open ended income scheme by the Board of Directors of the Management Company pursuant
to the provisions contained in Circular 7 of 2009 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund were
initially offered for public subscription at a par value of Rs 10 per unit. Thereafter, the units are being offered for public
subscription on a continuous basis from September 20, 2008 and are transferable and redeemable by surrendering them to the
Fund.

The objective of the Fund is to earn superior risk adjusted rate of return by investing in a blend of short, medium and long-term
instruments, both within and outside Pakistan which the Fund aims to deliver mainly by investing in equity securities, government
securities, cash in bank accounts, money market placements, deposits, Certificates of Deposits, Term Deposit Receipts,
commercial papers, term finance certificates / sukuks, spread transactions other absolute return instruments that may be allowed by
the SECP. The investment objectives and policies are explained in the Fund's offering document.

The title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements of the Trust
Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984,
the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the
NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

AABL Asset Management IA\B L_’ F (
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2.2

2.2.1

2.3

24

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current
year:

Effective from July 01, 2018, the Fund has adopted IFRS 9: "Financial Instruments" which has replaced IAS 39: "Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement". The standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets which requires
recognition of impairment charge based on 'expected credit losses' (ECL) approach rather than 'incurred credit losses' approach, as
previously given under IAS 39. However, the SECP vide its letter dated November 21, 2017, has deferred the applicability of
requirements relating to impairment for debt securities on mutual funds till further instructions. Currently, the Asset Management
Companies are required to continue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012 for impairment of debt securities. Furthermore,
the ECL has an impact on all other assets of the Fund which are exposed to credit risk. However, majority of the assets of the Fund
other than debt securities (for which there is a separate criteria as mentioned above) that are exposed to credit risk pertain to counter
parties which have high credit rating. Therefore, the management believes that the impact of ECL would be very minimal and hence,
the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby debt securities are either classified as (a) amortised cost or (b) at fair value
through other comprehensive income "(FVOCI)" or (c) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) based on the business model of
the entity. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to
make decisions. Furthermore, the collection of contractual cash flows for debt securities is only incidental to achieving the Fund’s
business model’s objective.

IFRS 9 requires securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose performance is measured on a fair value basis to be
recognised as FVTPL. The management considers its investment in debt securities being managed as a group of assets and hence has

classified them as FVTPL. Accordingly, the Fund’s investment portfolio continues to be classified as fair value through profit or loss
and other financial assets which are held for collection continue to be measured at amortised cost.

The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any impact on classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities on the
date of its adoption.

There are certain other amended standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting period
beginning on or after July 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Fund's operations
and are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective:

The following amendments to published accounting and reporting standards would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective amendments:

Effective date (accounting

Standards, interpretations and amendments periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 9 - 'Financial instruments' (amendment) January 1, 2019
IAS 1 - 'Presentation of financial statements' (amendment) January 1, 2020
IAS 8 - 'Accounting policies, change in accounting
estimates and errors' (amendment) January 1, 2020

The Management is currently in the process of assessing the full impact of these amendments on the financial statements of the Fund.

There are certain other standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting period beginning on
or after July 1, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Fund's operations and are,
therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
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2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Fund relate to classification, valuation
and impairment of financial assets (notes 3.2 and 5), provision for SWWF (note 11.1), provision for Federal Excise Duty (note 8.3)
and provision for taxation (notes 3.11 and 16).

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments have been carried at fair
values.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund
operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
applied consistently to all the years except for the change in accounting policy as explained in note 2.2 to these financial statements.
Cash and cash equivalents

These comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounts and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

Debt instruments

IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby these debt securities are either classified as:

- amortised cost

- at fair value through other comprehensive income “(FVOCI)”

- at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

based on the business model of the entity.

However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whereby securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose performance is
measured on a fair value basis, to be recognised at FVTPL. Therefore the management considers its investment in debt securities as
being managed as a group of assets and hence has classified them as FVTPL.

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount.

Impairment loss on debt securities

Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP and based on
management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company
in accordance with the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be reversed through the

Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum
provision requirement prescribed by the SECP, in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.
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33

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss'.
Financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are recognised
in the Income Statement.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss on derecognition of
financial assets is taken to the Income Statement.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative instrument is
remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These
are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to the Income Statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing the net assets of
the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the application received by the
Management Company / distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Net Asset Value (NAV) per
unit as of the close of the business day, plus the allowable sales load and provision of any duties and charges if applicable. The sales
load is payable to the Management Company / distributors.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price applicable to units for which the Management Company / distributors receive
redemption application during business hours of that day. The redemption price is equal to NAV as of the close of the business day,
less an amount as the Management Company may consider to be an appropriate provision of duties and charges.

Distributions to unit holders

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by the SECP, distribution for
the year also include portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.13

4.1

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised in the
financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the case may be,
of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further, the element of income is a
transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain
the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of
units lying in unit holders fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for
distribution.

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are recorded at the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Income from investments in term finance certificates / sukuks and government securities is recognised on an accrual basis
using effective interest method.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss' are recorded in the period in which these arise.

- Interest income on bank balances, commercial papers and placements is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Expenses

All expenses including management fee and trustee fee are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains,

whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders in cash.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net income of the year before taxation of the Fund by the weighted average number of
units outstanding during the year.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of

the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.

2019 2018
BANK BALANCES A ] 7 ——— Rupees in '000 -----------
Balances with banks in:
Savings accounts 4.1 642,683 1,924,427

This includes balance of Rs 18.055 million (2018: Rs 746.835 million) maintained with Allied Bank Limited (a related party) that
carries profit at 13.40% (2018: 6.70%) per annum. Other saving accounts of the Fund carry profit rates ranging from 8.00% to
13.75% per annum (2018: 3.00% to 6.70% per annum).
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5.1

5.2

5.2.1

2019

INVESTMENTS Note -----------—- Rupees in '000 -----------
At fair value through profit or loss
Term finance certificates - listed 5.1 - 161,242
Term finance certificates - unlisted 52 507,846 611,361
Sukuk certificates - listed 53 94,817 84,168
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 5.4 - -
Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds 5.5 359,346 -
Commercial paper 5.6 109,256 -
1,071,265 856,771
Term finance certificates - listed
. Market Market |Investment
. Carrying | Market | value as a
As at |Purchased| Disposed value as a asa
. | As at June | value as | value as |percentage
Name of Investee Company | July 01, [during the| during the 30, 2019 at June | at June of total percentage |percentage
2018 year year 30, 2019 | 30, 2019 [investment| °f7t | oftota
assets | issue size
-------- Number of certificates -------- --- Rupees in '000---- -------- Percentage ---------
Banks
MCB Bank Limited 32,246 - 32,246 - - - - - -
(Formerly NIB Bank Limited)
(face value of Rs. 4,992
per certificate)
Total - - - -
Total - June 30, 2018 163,161 161,242 18.82% 5.74%
Term finance certificates - unlisted
i Market Market |Investment
. Carrying | Market
As at |Purchased| Disposed value as a | value as a asa
Name of Investee Company | July 01, [during the| during the As at June | value as | value as percentage |percentage | percentage
2018 year year 30,2019 | atJune | at June of total of net of total
30, 2019 | 30, 2019
investment| assets issue size
=mmmmmemeemmmeem- NUmber of certificates --eseemesmmmeeaev === Rupees in'000 --- =-=--==---w---=- Percentage -------s---w----
POWER
Pakistan Water and Pow er
Development Authority 27,800 - 27,800 - - - - - -
(face value of Rs. 2,500
per certificate)
INVESTMENT COMPANIES
Jahangir Siddiqui Company
Limited 30,000 - - 30,000 133,039 130,856 12.22% 7.73% 8.72%
(face value of Rs. 5,000
per certificate)
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Bank of Punjab 1,850 140 200 1,790 182,520 177,077 16.53% 10.46% 7.08%
(face value of Rs. 99,960
per certificate)
JS Bank Limited 39,850 - - 39,850 200,521 199,913 18.66% 11.81% 6.66%
(face value of Rs. 5,000
per certificate)
Total 516,080 507,846 47.41%  30.00%
Total - June 30, 2018 607,858 611,361 71.35%  21.76%

The cost of unlisted term finance certificates as at June 30, 2019 is Rs. 510.696 million (2018: Rs. 605.658 million).
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5.2.2  The terms and conditions of unlisted term finance certificates outstanding as at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Profit payments Secured / Maturity
Name of the Investee Company Rating| Tenure | principal Issue date Rate of return
K unsecured date
redemptions
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Bank of Punjab AA- 10years Semi-annually Unsecured December December 6 month KIBOR +
2016 2026 1.0%
JS Bank Limited A+ 7 years Semi-annually Unsecured December December 6 month KIBOR +
2016 2023 1.40%

INVESTMENT COMPANIES
Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited AA+ S5years Semi-annually  Secured July 2017 July 2022 6 month KIBOR +
1.40%

5.3 Sukuk certificates - listed

Market

. Market |Investment
i Carrying | Market | value as a
As at |Purchased| Disposed value as a asa
) . As at June | value as | value as |percentage
July 01, |during the| during the

Company 30, 2019 at June | at June of total

Name of the Investee
percentage |percentage

2018 year year 30, 2019 | 30, 2019 |investments of net - of tota-l
assets | issue size
------------------ Number of certificates ------=--s--e--e--  --- Rupees in '000 --- =-==--=--=------ Percentage ----------------

GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN

GOP ljara - 87,000 87,000 - - - - - -
(face value of Rs. 5,000
per certificate)

FERTILIZER

Daw ood Hercules Company 840 217 - 1,057 95,253 94,817 8.85% 5.60% 3.35%
Limited
(face value of Rs. 90,000
per certificate)

Total 95,253 94,817 8.85% 5.60%

Total - June 30, 2018 84,000 84,168 9.82% 3.00%

5.3.1  The cost of listed sukuks certificates as at June 30, 2019 is Rs. 95.085 million (2018: Rs. 84 million).

5.3.2  The terms and conditions of these sukuk certificates are as follows:

Name of the Investee Company | Rating I Tenure | Profit payments Maturity date Rate of return
FERTILIZER
Daw ood Hercules Company Limited AA 5 years quarterly November, 2022 3 month KIBOR + 1.00%
5.4 Government securities - Market Treasury Bills
F lue (R in '000 R in '000 Market
ace value (Rupees in ) upees in Iar ef Market
alue as a
Disposed / Carrying | Market valu value as a
Purchased As at percentage
Tenure As at July i matured value as |value as at percentage
during the K June 30, of total
01, 2018 during the at June | June 30, of net
year 2019 invest-
year 30, 2019 2019 assets
ments
3 months - 16,034,000 16,034,000 - - - - -
Total - 16,034,000 16,034,000 - - - - -

Total - June 30, 2018 - - - -
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5.5 Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds

F lue (R in '000 R in "000 Market
ace value (Rupees in ) upees in Iar e Market
Disposed / Carrying | Market value as a value as a
Purchased As at percentage
Issue date Tenure |As at July . matured value as |value as at percentage
during the K June 30, of total
01, 2018 car during the 2019 at June | June 30, |, " ¢ of net
investmen
Y year 30,209 | 2019 assets
July 19, 2012 10 year - 101,500 101,500 - - - - -
July 17, 2014 5 year - 1,385,000 1,385,000 - - - - -
December 29, 2016 5 year - 25,000 - 25,000 22,786 21,901 2.04% 1.30%
August 9, 2019 10 year - 289,000 289,000 - - - - -
July 12, 2018 3 year - 2,346,000 2,012,500 333,500 299,526 296,277 27.66% 17.50%
July 12, 2018 5 year - 170,000 120,000 50,000 41,320 41,168 3.84% 2.43%
Total - 4,316,500 3,908,000 408,500 363,632 359,346 33.54% 21.23%

Total - June 30, 2018

5.5.1  The cost of Pakistan Investment Bonds as at June 30, 2019 is Rs. 361.676 million (2018: Rs Nil).

5.5.2  Pakistan Investment Bonds carry purchase yield of 11.90% to 13.81% per annum and will mature on July 12, 2021 to July 12, 2023.

5.6 Commercial papers
F lue (R in '000 R in '000 Market
ace value (Rupees in ) upees in Iar ef Market
Disposed / Carrying | Market value as a value as a
Purchased As at percentage
Name of Investee Company As at July . matured value as |value as at percentage
during the . June 30, of total
01, 2018 year during the 2019 at June | June 30, investment of net
year 30, 2019 2019 assets
---------------- Percentage -----=---s---s-
The Hub Pow er Company - 106,811 - 106,811 106,811 109,256 10.20% 6.45%
Total 106,811 109,256 10.20% 6.45%
Total - June 30, 2018 - - - -
5.6.1  This carry profit at the rate of 11.11% per annum (2018: Nil) and is due to mature on July 22, 2019.
5.7 Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement of Note 2019 2018

investments classified as Financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
Market value of investments
Carrying value of investments
6 INTEREST / PROFIT ACCRUED

Interest / profit accrued on:
Bank balances

5.1,5.2,5.3,54,55&5.6
5.1,5.2,5.3,5.4,5.5&5.6

Debt securities - Term finance and sukuk certificates
Government securities - Pakistan investment bonds

7 DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Security deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited

Deposit in IPS account

Security deposit with Bond Automated Trading System

Other receivable
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1,071,265 856,771
(1,084,221) (855,019)
(12,956) 1,752
9,569 9,489
10,733 8,808

14,218 -
34,520 18,297
100 100
30,180 34,448
485 928
250 250
7.1 3,077 1,052
34,092 36,778
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7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to collective investment
schemes (CISs) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150. However, withholding tax on profit on bank deposit
paid to the Fund was deducted by various withholding agents based on the interpretation issued by FBR vide letter C. no. 1(43) DG
(WHT)/2008-VOL.I1-66417-R dated 12 May 2015 which requires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates
in case a valid exemption certificate under section 159(1) issued by the concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not
produced before him by the withholdee. The tax withheld on profit on bank deposits amounts to Rs. 3.077 million.

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalf of various mutual funds (including the Funds being
managed by the Management Company) had filed a petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the above
mentioned interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decided by the SHC in favour of FBR. On January 28,
2016, the Board of Directors of the Management Company passed a resolution by circulation, authorising all CISs to file an appeal in
the Honourable Supreme Court through their Trustees, to direct all persons being withholding agents, including share registrars and
banks to observe the provisions of clause 47B of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 without
imposing any conditions at the time of making any payment to the CISs being managed by the Management Company. Accordingly,
a petition was filed in the Supreme Court of Pakistan by the Funds together with other CISs (managed by the Management Company
and other Asset Management Companies) whereby the Supreme Court granted the petitioners leave to appeal from the initial
judgement of the SHC. Pending resolution of the matter, the amount of withholding tax deducted on profit received by the Fund bank
deposits has been shown as other receivable as at June 30, 2019 as, in the opinion of the management, the amount of tax deducted at
source will be refunded.

PAYABLE TO ABL ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED - Note 2019 2018

MANAGEMENT COMPANY - RELATED PARTY e Rupees in '000---------
Management fee payable 8.1 2,195 3,253
Punjab Sales Tax payable on remuneration

of the Management Company 8.2 3,137 3,306
Federal Excise Duty payable on remuneration of the

Management Company 8.3 19,142 19,142
Accounting and operational charges payable 8.4 860 674
Selling and marketing expenses payable 8.5 3,431 780
Sales load payable - 35

28,765 27,190

As per NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company is entitled to a remuneration equal to an amount not exceeding 1.5% of
the average annual net assets in case of income schemes. Keeping in view the maximum allowable threshold, the Management
Company has charged its remuneration at the rate of 1.5% (2018: 1.5%) per annum of the average net assets of the Fund during the
year ended June 30, 2019. The remuneration is payable to the Management Company monthly in arrears.

During the year, an amount of Rs. 4.908 million (2018: Rs 8.888 million) was charged on account of sales tax on management fee
levied through Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 16% (2018: 16%).

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management
Companies (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration of the Management Company and sales
load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company was of the view that since the remuneration was
already subject to provincial sales tax, further levy of FED would result in double taxation which did not appear to be the spirit of the
law. Hence, on September 4, 2013 a constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Management Company
together with various other asset management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial institutions dealing in services which
are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty
recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or providing of services (to the extent as
challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil
Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication.
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In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the Management
Company with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution the provision for FED made for the period from
June 13, 2013 till June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs 19.142 million is being retained in these financial statements of the Fund as the
matter is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. Had the provision for FED not been made, the Net Asset Value of the Fund
as at June 30, 2019 would have been higher by Re 0.114 (2018: Re 0.072) per unit.

8.4 Uptil June 19, 2019 in accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company was entitled to charge
expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operations and valuation services, related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS)
at the rate of 0.1% of the average annual net assets of the scheme or actual whichever is less. During the year, SECP vide SRO 639
dated June 20, 2019 has removed the maximum cap of 0.1%. Accordingly, the Management Company can now charge actual
expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operations and valuation services to the CIS with effect from June 20, 2019.

However, the management continued to charge expenses at the rate of 0.1 percent of the average annual net assets of the Fund for
both the periods i.e from July 1, 2018 to June 19, 2019 and from June 20, 2019 to June 30, 2019, being lower than actual expenses.

8.5 The SECP has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all categories of open-end
mutual funds (except fund of funds) initially for three years (from January 1, 2017 till December 31, 2019). The maximum cap of
selling and marketing expense shall be 0.4% per annum of net assets of the fund or actual expenses whichever is lower. Accordingly,
the Management Company has charged selling and marketing expenses amounting to Rs. 8.177 million at the rate of 0.4% of the net
assets of the Fund being lower than actual expenses chargeable to the Fund for the year.

9 PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF Note 2019 2018
PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE - RELATED PARTY = o Rupees in '000-------------—-—-
Trustee fee payable 9.1 194 254
Sindh Sales tax payable on trustee fee 9.2 26 33
Settlement charges payable 25 41
245 328
9.1 The Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the trust deed as follows:

On net assets:

- up to Rs 1,000 million Rs 0.7 million or 0.2% per annum of net assets, whichever is higher.
- exceeding Rs.1,000 million Rs 2 million plus 0.1% per annum of net assets exceeding Rs 1,000 million.
9.2 During the year, an amount of Rs 0.336 million (2018: Rs. 0.515 million) was charged on account of sales tax on remuneration of the

Trustee levied through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

10 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Note 2019 2018
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN  emmeeen Rupees in '000----------------
Annual fee payable 10.1 1,534 2,743

10.1 In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, 2008, a collective investment scheme classified as a income scheme is required to pay to
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan an amount equal to 0.075% of the average annual net assets of the Fund as

annual fee.
Note 2019 2018
11 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES el Rupees in '000----------—--—--

Auditors' remuneration payable 324 414
NCCPL charges payable - 30
Printing charges payable 93 150
Brokerage fee payable - 6
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 11.1 4,183 4,183
Withholding tax payable 6,501 46

11,101 4,829
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14

15

16

As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015 the Sindh Workers” Welfare Fund Act, 2014
(SWWF Act) had been passed by the Government of Sindh as a result of which every industrial establishment located in the Province
of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting year is not less than Rs 0.50 million, was required to pay Sindh Workers’
Welfare Fund (SWWF) in respect of that year a sum equal to two percent of such income. The matter was taken up by the MUFAP
with the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) collectively on behalf of various asset management companies and their CISs whereby it was
contested that mutual funds should be excluded from the ambit of the SWWF Act as these were not industrial establishments but
were pass through investment vehicles and did not employ workers. The SRB held that mutual funds were included in the definition
of financial institutions as per the Financial Institution (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 and were, hence, required to register
and pay SWWF under the SWWF Act. Thereafter, MUFAP had taken up the matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry to have CISs /
mutual funds excluded from the applicability of SWWF. In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of SWWF on
CISs/mutual funds, MUFAP recommended that, as a matter of abundant caution, provision in respect of SWWF should be made on a
prudent basis with effect from the date of enactment of the SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May 21, 2015).

The Fund has made provision for SWWF from May 21, 2015 till June 30, 2017 amounting to Rs 4.183 million as the decision in this
respect is pending to date. The Fund has not made any provision for SWWF after July 01, 2017 as the registered office of the
Management Company of the Fund has been relocated from the Province of Sindh to the Province of Punjab.

Had the provision for SWWF not been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund for the period from May 21, 2015 to June 30,
2017, the net asset value of the Fund as at June 30, 2019 would have been higher by Rs 0.025 (2018: Rs 0.016) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018.

2019 2018
INTEREST/PROFITEARNED Rupees in '000----------—--
Interest / profit on:
Saving accounts 85,801 148,240
Debt securities - Term finance and sukuk certificates 77,762 80,284
Government Securities - Market treasury bills and
Pakistan investment bonds 33,715 13,026
Margin trading system 2,511 -
Commercial papers 2,445 2,691
202,234 244,241
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual audit fee 250 250
Half yearly review of condensed interim financial statements 75 125
Fee for other certifications - 80
Out of pocket expenses 74 116
399 571

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Total Expense Ratio (TER) of the Fund as at June 30, 2019 is 2.55% (2018: 2.12%) which includes 0.33% (2018: 0.33%)
representing government levies on the Fund such as sales taxes, annual fee to the SECP, etc. This ratio is within the maximum limit
of 2.5% prescribed under the NBFC Regulations for a collective investment scheme categorised as a income scheme.

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause (99) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether
realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders as cash dividend. Furthermore, as per Regulation 63 of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute not less than 90% of its
accounting income for the year derived from sources other than capital gains as reduced by such expenses as are chargeable thereon
to the unit holders. Since the management has distributed the required minimum percentage of income earned by the Fund for the
year ended June 30, 2019 to the unit holders in the manner as explained above no provision for taxation has been made in these
financial statements during the year.
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The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

17 EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determination of cumulative weighted
average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

18 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

18.1  Connected persons include ABL Asset Management Company Limited being the Management Company, the Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee, other collective investment schemes managed by the Management Company, any
entity in which the Management Company, its CISs or their connected persons have material interest, any person or company
beneficially owning directly or indirectly ten percent or more of the capital of the Management Company or the net assets of the
Fund, directors and their close family members and key management personnel of the Management Company.

18.2  Transactions with connected persons are executed on an arm's length basis and essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee
on account of managing the affairs of the Fund, sales load, other charges and distribution payments to connected persons. The
transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and at terms determined in accordance
with market rates.

18.3  Remuneration to the Management Company of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations,
2008.

18.4  Remuneration to the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the
Trust Deed.

18.5  The details of transactions carried out by the Fund with connected persons during the year and balances with them as at year end are
as follows:

2019 2018

ABL Asset Management Company Limited (Management Company)

Remuneration charged 30,675 54,867
Punjab sales tax on remuneration of the Management Company charged 4,908 8,888
Accounting and operational charges 2,044 3,657
Selling and marketing charges 8,177 780
Issue of 95,129,192 (2018: 29,938,616) units 994,577 303,897
Redemption of 114,061,068 (2018: 26,367,301) units 1,181,268 269,000
Outstanding 63,066,097 (2018: 81,997,973) units 635,183 861,274
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee)
Remuneration of the Trustee 2,588 3,959
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 336 515
Settlement charges incurred 25 73
Security deposits refundable 100 100
Deposit in IPS and BATS account 735 1,178
Allied Bank Limited
Mark-up income on bank deposits 6,730 13,998
Bank charges 41 52
Mark - up accrued on deposits 601 1,305
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Conservative Allocation Plan
Issue of 1,594,958 (2018: 1,508,347) units 16,097 15,200
Redemption of 4,867,052 (2018: 6,992,895) units 50,353 71,446
Outstanding 13,258,218 (2018: 16,530,312) units 133,533 173,628
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ABL Financial Planning Fund - Strategic Allocation Plan
Issue of 16,848,730 (2018: 25,368,591) units

Redemption of 27,478,788 (2018: 36,225,196) units
Outstanding 30,068,469 (2018: 40,698,527) units

ABL Financial Planning Fund - Active Allocation Plan
Issue of 6,517,604 (2018: Nil) units

Redemption of 1,710,178 (2018: Nil) units

Outstanding 4,807,426 (2018: Nil) units

Directors and their close family members and key management
personnel of the Management Company

Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed (Director of the Management Company)
Issue of 724,967 (2018: Nil) units
Outstanding 724,967 (2018: Nil) units

Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar (Director of the Management Company)
Issue of 1,097,479 (2018: Nil) units
Outstanding 1,803,583 (2018: 706,104) units

2019 2018

174,020 255,000
285,330 371,992
302,841 427,481

67,665 -
17,674 -
48,419 .

7,479 -
7,302 -

11,524 -
18,165 7417

Other balances due to / from related parties / connected persons are included in the respective notes to the financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances
Commercial paper

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

Bank balances

Investments

Interest / profit accrued
Deposits and other receivable

Financial liabilities

Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable against redemption of units

Dividend payable

Payable against purchase of investments

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

AABL Asset Management
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2019 2018
Note  -—--—----m-m-—-- Rupees in '000-------------—--
4 642,683 1,924,427
109,256 -
751,939 1,924,427
2019
. At fair value
Atamortised through profit Total
cost
or loss
-------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------—-
642,683 - 642,683
- 1,071,265 1,071,265
34,520 - 34,520
31,015 - 31,015
708,218 1,071,265 1,779,483
2019
At amortised Total
cost

----------- Rupees in '000 --------—-—

28,765 28,765
245 245
1,675 1,675

1 1
46,338 46,338
417 417
77,441 77,441
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2018
At fair value
through profit Total
or loss
---- Rupees in '000

At amortised
cost

Financial assets

Bank balances 1,924,427 - 1,924,427
Investments - 856,771 856,771
Receivable against sale of investments 9,655 - 9,655
Interest / profit accrued 18,297 - 18,297
Deposits and other receivables 35,726 - 35,726
1,988,105 856,771 2,844,876
2018
At amortised Total
cost

----------- Rupees in '000 -----------
Financial liabilities

Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company 27,190 27,190
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 328 328
Payable against redemption of units 811 811
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 600 600

28,929 28,929

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders’ value. Risk is inherent in the Fund’s activities,
but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be performed based on limits established
by the Management Company, the constitutive documents of the Fund and the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits
reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The
Board of Directors of the Management Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is
exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices.

The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment portfolio and by following the internal
guidelines established by the Investment Committee.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: yield / interest rate risk, currency risk, and price risk.
(i)  Yield / interest rate risk

Yield / interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2019, the Fund is exposed to such risk on investments in term finance, Pakistan
investment bonds, commercial paper and sukuk certificates and its accrued markup. The Investment Committee of the Fund
reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

a)  Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Presently, the Fund holds KIBOR based term finance and sukuks certificates and accrued mark-up on balances with banks
which expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in applicable rates on the
last repricing date with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and net assets of the Fund would have been
higher/lower by Rs. 7.464 million (2018: Rs. 8.663 million).

b)  Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at 30 June 2019, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instrument that may expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio, KIBOR rates and the rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of
Pakistan are expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2019 is not necessarily
indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.
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Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or
maturity date.

The Fund's interest rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabilities as at June 30, 2019 can be determined as

follows:
2019
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not
Effective More than exposed to
interest rate Up to three three More than yield / Total
(%) months months one year interest
and up to i
rate risk
one year
mmmmmmmmnmmmmenmnmeeennneeemees RUPEES iN 000 -mmemmemmmeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee
Financial assets
Bank balances 8.00% - 13.75%| 642,683 - - - 642,683
Investments 11.90% - 14.45%| 109,256 - 962,009 - 1,071,265
Interest / profit accrued - - - 34,520 34,520
Deposits and other receivable - - - 31,015 31,015
751,939 - 962,009 65,535 1,779,483
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited
- Management Company - - - 28,765 28,765
Payable to the Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 245 245
Payable against redemption of units - - - 1,675 1,675
Dividend payable - - - 1 1
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 46,338 46,338
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 417 417
- - - 77,441 77,441
On-balance sheet gap 751,939 - 962,009 (11,906) 1,702,042
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 751,939 - 962,009
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 751,939 751,939 1,713,948
2018
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not
Effective More than exposed to
interest rate Up to three three More than yield / Total
(%) months months one year interest
and up to .
rate risk
one year
mmmmmmmmmeeenennnenennesesnnnnnees RUPEES (N 1000 =ommemmmmmmmmmeeemmmmeceneeenenn
Financial assets
Bank balances 3.00% - 6.70% (1,924,427 - - - 1,924,427
Investments 5.24% - 8.41% - - 856,771 - 856,771
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 9,655 9,655
Interest / profit accrued - - - 18,297 18,297
Deposits and other receivables - - - 35,726 35,726
1,924,427 - 856,771 63,678 2,844,876
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Management Company - - - 27,190 27,190
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 328 328
Payable against redemptions of units - - - 811 811
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 600 600
- - - 28,929 28,929
On-balance sheet gap 1,924,427 - 856,771 34,749 2,815,947
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 1,924,427 - 856,771
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 1,924,427 1,924,427 2,781,198
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(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to
such risk.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity instruments decreases as a result of changes in the level of equity
indices and the value of individual stocks. The Fund does not have any investment in equity securities as of June 30, 2018.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation in full as they fall
due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily settlement of equity securities and daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. The Fund's approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due under both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments that
are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of ten percent of the
units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day.
Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in
issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions during the year.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is
based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates. However, the assets and liabilities
that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been included in the maturity grouping of one month:

2019
More than | More than Financial
th th More than inst ¢
one mon ree instrumen
Within 1 one year | More than .
and upto | months s with no Total
month and upto 5 years .
three and upto . fixed
five years K
months one year maturity

Rupees in '000

Financial assets

Bank balances 642,683 - - - - - 642,683
Investments 109,256 - - 784,933 | 177,077 - 1,071,266
Interest / profit accrued 34,520 - - - - - 34,520
Deposits and other receivable 31,015 - - - - - 31,015

817,474 - - 784,933 177,077 - 1,779,484

Financial liabilities
Payable to the ABL Asset Management

Company Limited - Management Company 28,765 - - - - - 28,765
Payable to the Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 245 - - - - - 245
Payable against redemptions of units 1,675 - - - - - 1,675
Dividend payable 1 - - - - - 1
Payable against purchase of investments 46,338 - - - - - 46,338
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 417 - - - - - 417
77,441 - - - - - 77,441
Net financial assets 740,033 - - 784,933 177,077 - 1,702,043
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2018

Financial assets

Bank balances

Investments

Receivable against sale of investments
Interest / profit accrued

Deposits and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Payable to the ABL Asset Management
Company Limited - Management Company

Payable to the Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable against redemptions of units

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net financial assets

More than More than Financial
th th More than inst ¢
Within 1 onemon ree oneyear More than instrumen
and upto  months s with no Total
month and upto 5 years §
three and upto fixed
five years .
months one year maturity
Rupees in '000

1,924,427 - - - - - 1,924,427
- - - 467,134 | 389,637 - 856,771
9,655 - - - - - 9,655
18,297 - - - - - 18,297
35,726 - - - - - 35,726
1,988,105 - - 467,134 389,637 - 2,844,876
27,190 - - - - - 27,190
328 - - - - - 328
811 - - - - - 811
600 - - - - - 600
28,929 - - - - - 28,929
28,929 - - - - - 28,929
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21.3 Credit risk

21.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to discharge its
obligation as it falls due. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:

2019 2018
Balance as Maximum Balance as per Maximum
per statement of
exposure to exposure to
statement of . assets and .
credit risk e erese credit risk
assets and liabilities

---------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------n-mmmmomemeeeeem
Bank balances 642,683 642,683 1,924,427 1,924,427
Investments in debt instruments 1,071,265 711,919 856,771 856,771
Receivable against sale of investments - - 9,655 9,655
Interest / profit accrued 34,520 20,302 18,297 18,297
Deposits and other receivable 34,092 31,015 36,778 35,726
1,782,560 1,405,919 2,845,928 2,844,876

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2019 is the carrying amount of the financial
assets.

21.3.2 Credit quality of financial assets
The Fund's significant credit risk (excluding credit risk relating to settlement of equity securities) arises mainly on account of its

placements in banks and mark-up accrued thereon, investments in term finance, sukuk certificates and commercial papers. The credit
rating profile of balances with banks and investment in debt securities is as follows:

Rating % of financial assets exposed to
credit risk
Banks / Commercial Papers 2019 2018
AAA 1.02% 8.13%
AA+ 0.01% 5.34%
AA 0.09% 2.96%
AA- 33.50% 6.64%
A+ 0.00% 7.05%
34.62% 30.12%
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*

Rating % of financial assets exposed to
credit risk

Term Finance Certificates / Sukuk certificates 2019 2018
AA 26.33%
A -
7.34% 0.23%

AA+
AA- 9.93% 18.18%
AA 5.32% 0.05%
A+ 11.21% 22.85%

33.81% 67.64%

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.
Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to
curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date. The
estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not to be significantly different from the respective book
values.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify assets using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair values:

2019

Levell |[ Levet2 [[  Leva3 ]| Total
Rupees in '000

At fair value through profit or loss

Term finance certificates - unlisted - 507,846 - 507,846
Sukuk certificates - listed - 94,817 - 94,817
Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds - 359,346 - 359,346
Commercial paper* - 109,256 - 109,256
- 1,071,265 - 1,071,265
2018
Levell || Level2 || Level3d ||  Total
At fair value through profit or loss
Term finance certificates - listed - 161,242 - 161,242
Term finance certificates - unlisted - 611,361 - 611,361
Sukuk certificates - listed - 84,168 - 84,168
- 856,771 - 856,771

The valuation of commercial papers has been done based on amortisation of commercial paper to its fair value as per the guidelines
given in Circular 33 of 2012 since the residual maturity of this investment is less than six months and are placed with counterparties
which have high credit rating.
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23 UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT
The unit holders' fund is represented by redeemable units. These units are entitled to dividends and to payment of a proportionate
share based on the Fund's Net Asset Value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements are shown in the 'Statement of
Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'.
The Fund has no restriction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations, 2008 every open
end scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs 100 million at all times during the life of the scheme. The
Fund has historically maintained and complied with the requirement of minimum fund size at all times.
The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders' funds are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns to the unit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets to meet unexpected losses or opportunities.
In accordance with the risk management policies as stated in note 21, the Fund endeavors to invest the subscriptions received in
appropriate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions, such liquidity being augmented by
disposal of investments or short-term borrowings, where necessary.
24 UNIT HOLDING PATTERN OF THE FUND
2019 2018
Investment Investment
Catego Number of amount Percentage of Number of amount Percentage of
gory unit holders (Rupees in total unit holders (Rupees in total
'000) '000)

Individuals 1,234 310,394 18.34% 1,272 501,384 17.84%
Associated Companies /

Directors 6 1,145,442 67.66% 4 1,469,786 52.30%
Insurance Companies 1 1,401 0.08% 1 1,329 0.05%
Retirement Funds 17 215,974 12.76% 33 724,398 25.78%
Public Limited Companies 5 - 0.00% 5 55,839 1.99%
Others 11 19,690 1.16% 13 57,291 2.04%

1,274 1,692,901 100.00% 1,328 2,810,027 100.00%

25 LIST OF TOP TEN BROKERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

2019 2018
Percentage of Percentage of
Name of broker commission Name of broker commission
paid paid
Optimus Markets (Pvt) Limited 63.19%  Optimus Markets (Private) Limited 66.89%
Next Capital Ltd 16.21% Next Capital Limited 17.16%
JS Global Capital Ltd 13.33% Js Global Capital Limited 14.11%
EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited 2.78%  Vector Capital (Private) Limited 1.40%
Topline Securities Ltd 1.97% Invest One Markets Limited 0.11%
Vector Capital (Pvt.) Ltd 1.33% Magenta Capital (Private) Limited 0.11%
Al Habib Capital Markets Pvt Limited 0.78%  Bright Capital (Private) Limited 0.05%
Invest One Markets Ltd 0.10% Icon Management (Private) Limited 0.05%
Magenta Capital (Pvt.) Ltd 0.10% Bipl Securities Limited 0.05%
Bright Capital (Pvt.) Ltd 0.05%  Paramount Capital (Private) Limited 0.05%
26 DETAILS OF MEMBERS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Following are the details in respect of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund:

[ Name | Designation | | Qualification | [ Overall experience
Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Chief Executive Officer MBA 18
Saqib Mateen CFO & Company Secretary ACA & APFA 20
Tanweer Haral Head of Risk Management MBA - Banking 24
Fahad Aziz Head of Fixed Income MBA - Finance 13
Ali Ahmed Tiwana Head of Equity CIMA 9
M. Tahir Saeed Head of Research MBEcon & CFA 7
M. Abdul Hayee Fund Manager - Equity MBA-Executive & CFA 11
Abdul Rehman Tahir Fund Manager - Fixed Income MBA 8
A)’3LA—I &50’1\75 F!J !]i I AABL Asset Management
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28

29

30

31

32

NAME AND QUALIFICATION OF THE FUND MANAGER

Name | | Designation || Qualification | | Other Funds managed by the Fund Manager

Fahad Aziz Fund Manager MBA - Finance ABL Cash Fund and ABL Government Securities Fund

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The 56th, 57th, 58th and 59th Board of Directors meetings were held on September 06, 2018, October 25, 2018, February 06, 2019
and April 30, 2019, respectively. Information in respect of attendance by the directors and other persons in the meetings is given
below:

Number of meetings .

St e, Name Held | Attended | Leave granted Meetings not attended
1 Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed 4 3 1 59th
2 Mohammad Naeem Mukhtar 4 4 - -
3 Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar 4 3 1 59th
4 Tahir Hasan Qureshi 4 3 1 59th
5 Muhammad Kamran Shehzad 4 4 -
6 Pervaiz Iqbal Butt 4 4 -
7  Alee Khalid Ghaznavi 4 4 - -

Other persons
9 Saqib Mateen* 4 4 - -

*  Mr. Saqib Mateen attended the meetings as Company Secretary.

RATING OF THE FUND AND THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has determined the asset manager rating of the Management Company of AM2++
(2018: AM2++ on December 29, 2017) on December 31, 2018. The rating reflects the Company’s experienced management team,

structured investment process and sound quality of systems and processes.

Furthermore, JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has maintained the stability rating of A(f) (2018: A(f) ) to the Fund on
January 16, 2019.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-classified and re-arranged in these financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate
comparison and to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications have
been made in these financial statements during the current year.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on
8-August-2019

GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest (thousand) Rupee unless otherwise stated.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited

(Management Company)
Saqib Mateen Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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The Board of Directors of ABL Asset Management Company Limited (the Management Company of the
fund) have overall responsibility for the implementation of Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is
available on Management Company’s website (www.ablamc.com). During the financial year, the
Management Company on behalf of the Fund did not participate in 0 shareholders' meeting. Moreover,
details of summarized proxies voted are as follows:

Resolutions For Against Abstain Reason for Abstaining_
Number - - - - -

(Yoages) - - - - -

N ¢
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www.jamapunji.pk

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

Key features:

Gz Licensed Entities Verification 4l Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

¢ Scam meter*
B8 Knowledge center

Risk profiler*
[ Financial calculator

@8 Jamapunji games*
B Tax credit calculator*

i L RRnvR GHincation Subscription to Alerts (event
[E Insurance & Investment Checklist notifications, corporate and

regulatory actions)
7? FAQs Answered
@ Jamapunii application for

mobile device
& Online Quizzes
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Jama |:»..,...]1 isan m,. jamapuniji.pk @jamapunji_pk
Education Inif

itiative of
Securites and Exchange , ¥ " :
Commission of Pakistan *Mobile apps are also available for download for android and ios devices
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A ABL Asset Management

Discover the potential

For Information on ABL AMC’s Funds, please visit

G‘ www.ablamc.com  or 0800-22526
or visit any Allied Bank Branch




